Public Document Pack

Licensing and
Regulatory
Sub-Committee
Title

Agenda

Date

Wednesday 11 November 2020

Time

4.00 pm

Venue

Facilitated by Microsoft TeamsLive virtual meetings
platform only
The meeting will be accessible by the press and public
via a live stream; the link to which will be published on
the Council’s website alongside the agenda papers

Full Members

Patrick Chung
Pat Hanlon
Karen Soons

Substitute

Clive Springett

Membership is drawn from the full membership of the Licensing and
Regulatory Committee and is politically balanced as far as is practicable.
Interests –
declaration and
restriction on
participation

Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any
disclosable pecuniary interest not entered in the Authority's
register or local non pecuniary interest which they have in any
item of business on the agenda (subject to the exception for
sensitive information) and to leave the meeting prior to
discussion and voting on an item in which they have a
disclosable pecuniary interest.

Quorum

Three Members

Committee
administrator

Helen Hardinge
Democratic Services Officer
Telephone 01638 719363
Email helen.hardinge@westsuffolk.gov.uk

HEARING PROCEDURE
Pre-Hearing Matters
1.

Declaration of Interests

2.

Chair will introduce members of the Hearing Panel

3.

Chair will ask those present to introduce themselves in the following order:







Applicant and any person representing or assisting them
(Confirmation also should be given that copies of the relevant
representations to be considered at the Hearing have been
received);
The Officer of the Licensing Authority, the Committee Administrator
and the Legal Advisor to the Hearing Panel;
Responsible authorities that have made a relevant representation;
Interested parties who have made a relevant representation
(Interested parties should confirm whether a spokesperson has been
nominated and, if so identify them);
In the event of a review hearing, the respondent.

4.

The Chair will ask all parties to the Hearing whether they wish to withdraw
their application or representation.

5.

The Chair will ask the Officer of the Licensing Authority to report:



6.

Any requests from a party to the Hearing for permission for a
witness to appear in support of their representation. Any such
requests will be determined by the Hearing Panel.
Any documentary or other information that a party to the Hearing
wishes to present. If there is any such material, the Chair will ask all
the other parties to the Hearing whether they consent to it being
presented. If they agree, the material will be distributed. If not, the
said material may not be distributed unless there are exceptional
circumstances which in the Chair’s opinion render it necessary and
appropriate for the said material to be presented to the Hearing
Panel. In this regard the Chair’s decision will be final.

The Chair will invite the applicant or his representative to estimate the time
required to present their case and ask questions of other parties to the
Hearing. He will then ask the other parties to the Hearing whether they will
require a longer period to present their representation and question the
applicant. The Hearing Panel will determine the maximum period of time
allowed for each party to put their case. This decision will be final.

THE HEARING
Immediately the pre-Hearing matters have been dealt with the Hearing will
commence.

1.

The Chair will ask the Officer of the Licensing Authority to summarise the
matter under consideration.

2.

The members of the Hearing Panel, the applicant, and those making
representations may ask questions of the Officer of the Licensing Authority.

3.

Starting with the applicant and, in the event of a review, concluding with
the respondent, each party will exercise their rights within the identified
maximum time, as follows:





Each party to present their case, including responding to any points
of which the Licensing Authority has previously given notice, and call
any approved witness or witnesses in support of their case.
If given permission by the Chair, and only through the Chair of the
Hearing, each member of Sub Committee, office of the Licensing
Authority or any party may raise questions of any other party or
witness/witnesses.
Where a party was unable to attend by virtue of it being held
virtually, the Chair shall request the Democratic Services Officer to
read any written submissions received in place of an oral statement.

4.

Starting with the applicant and, in the event of a review hearing,
concluding with the respondent, each party will be asked to sum up their
case.

5.

All those present, other than the members of the Hearing Panel, their Legal
Advisor and the Committee Administrator, will be asked to leave the
meeting to allow Members to determine the application.

6.

All parties will be recalled. The Legal Advisor to the Hearing Panel will
advise those present of any advice that has been provided during the
determination. The Chair will then:


either announce the decision, together with the reasons for it if it is
a Hearing in relation to an application for which the Licensing
Authority may make its determination at the conclusion of the
Hearing;

or


advise all the parties that the Licensing Authority will make its
determination within 5 working days, in which case notification of
the determination will be sent out in writing (including the rights of
appeal) to all relevant parties not later than 5 working days after the
Hearing date.

7.

In the event of the Licensing Authority making its determination at the
conclusion of the Hearing the Chair will outline the rights of appeal. The
decision and rights of appeal will also be confirmed in writing by the Officer
of the Licensing Authority forthwith.

8.

Nothing within Paragraph 6 above will preclude a Licensing Authority from
making its determination at the conclusion of any Hearing, should the
Hearing Panel so decide. It is entirely within the discretion of the Members
of the said Panel whose decision in this regard will be final

Agenda
Procedural matters
Part 1 – public
Page No
1.

Apologies for absence

2.

Substitutes
Any member who is substituting for another member should so
indicate, together with the name of the relevant absent member.

3.

Election of Chair
To seek nominations for the election of Chair for this subcommittee meeting.

4.

Declarations of interest
Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any
pecuniary or local non pecuniary interest which they have in any
item of business on the agenda, no later than when that item
is reached and, when appropriate, to leave the meeting prior to
discussion and voting on the item.
The attached hearing procedure will be adopted in considering
the undermentioned item:

5.

Application for the Variation of a Premises Licence - The
Northgate, 13-14 Northgate Street, Bury St Edmunds
Report No: LSC/WS/20/003

1 - 40

Agenda Item 5

Application for the
Variation of a Premises
Licence – The
Northgate, 13-14
Northgate Street,
Bury St Edmunds,
IP33 1HP
Report No:
Report to and
date/s:

LSC/WS/20/003
Licensing & Regulatory
Sub-Committee

11/11/2020

Cabinet Member:

Councillor Andy Drummond
Portfolio Holder for Planning & Regulatory Services
Tel: 01638 751411
Email: andy.drummond@westsuffolk.gov.uk

Lead officer:

Stephen Moore
Licensing Officer
Tel: 01284 757026
Email: stephen.m.moore@westsuffolk.gov.uk

Wards impacted:

Eastgate

Page 1

Recommendation:

It is recommended that, in determining the
application with a view to promoting the
licensing objectives in the overall interests of the
local community, Members give appropriate
weight to, the steps that are appropriate to
promote the licensing objectives; West Suffolk
Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy; Guidance
issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act
2003; the representations attached to this
report, and any further relevant information
presented to the Sub-Committee on the day of
the hearing
The steps may be:
(a) Grant the licence, subject to such conditions
as are consistent with the operating schedule
accompanying the application, modified to
such extent as the Authority considers
necessary for the promotion of the licencing
objectives; or
(b) Exclude from the scope of the licence any of
the licensable activities to which the
application relates, or
(c) Reject the application

Page 2

1.

Background / Context

1.1

An application for the Variation of a Premises Licence, made under the
Licensing Act 2003, was received and accepted by the Licensing Authority on
18 September 2020. The application form and associated plan are attached as
Appendix 1 and Appendix 2 respectively.

1.2

The application, made by Chestnut Inns Ltd, proposes through the application
to remove certain conditions imposed by committee on original application
Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority
1.
The outside areas are to be vacated by 9.00pm every evening.
2.
No tents or marquees are to be erected in the outside area.
3.
The car park shall be closed between 11.00pm and 07.30am every day.

On this application the licence holder wishes to remove
Annex 3 conditions 1 & 2
1.3

The Licensing objectives which must be actively promoted by the
applicant/holder of any Premises Licence issued under the Licensing Act 2003
are as follows;
-

The Prevention of Crime & Disorder
Public Safety
Prevention of Public Nuisance
Protection of Children from Harm

1.4

A statutory 28 day consultation period started on 18 September 2020 and
ended on 16 September 2020. This enabled Responsible Authorities and
‘Other Persons’ to make representations towards the application. ‘Other
Persons’ includes any individual, body or business whether or not they live in
the vicinity.

1.5

The details of the application were published in the local newspaper, displayed
on the exterior of the premises, and advertised on the Council’s website
during the consultation period, as per the regulations.

1.6

Representations were received from a number of parties and responsible
authorities

1.7

A total of 5 persons in 2 representations were received by the Licensing
Authority from ‘Other Persons’ within the statutory time frame, resulting in
the necessitation of this hearing. The details of the representations are
attached as Appendix 3.

2.

Proposals

2.1

Members should seek to focus the hearing on the steps considered appropriate
to promote the particular licence objective or objectives that have given rise to
the specific representation and avoid straying into undisputed areas.

Page 3

2.2

Members should strongly consider the adopted Cumulative Impact Assessment
held within the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy.

3.

Legal Compliance

3.1

The Sub-Committee may take any of the steps set out below, provided they
are proportionate and appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives:
(a)

(b)
(c)

Grant the licence, subject to such conditions as are consistent with the
operating schedule accompanying the application, modified to such extent
as the Authority considers necessary for the promotion of the licencing
objectives
Exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to
which the application relates, or
Reject the application

A condition is modified where it is altered or omitted or any new condition is
added.
3.2

Each application should be considered on its own merits, having regard to the
Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy and the guidance issued under Section
182 of the Licensing Act 2003.

3.3

The decision may be appealed, by the applicant or any other party to the
hearing, within 21 days of written notification of the determination made by the
Sub-Committee. The Sub-Committee should state in reaching its determination
those matters which it considered relevant, those matters which it did not
consider as they were irrelevant, and its reasons for the decision.

4.

Appendices

4.1

Appendix 1 – Application
Appendix 2 – Plan of Premises
Appendix 3 – Relevant Representations

5.

Background documents

5.1

Licensing Act 2003 - http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/17/contents
Guidance issued under S.182 of the Licensing Act 2003 –
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads
/attachment_data/file/705588/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_
of_the_Licensing_Act_2003__April_2018_.pdf
West Suffolk Council Statement of Licensing Policy –
https://www.westsuffolk.gov.uk/Council/Policies_Strategies_and_Plans/More_
plans_and_policies/upload/WSCStatementofLicensingandCIAPolicy.pdf

Page 4

APPENDIX 1
Application to vary a premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003
PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST
Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. If
you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all
cases ensure that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use
additional sheets if necessary.
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.
I

Chestnut Inns Ltd
(Insert name(s) of applicant)
being the premises licence holder, apply to vary a premises licence under
section 34 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in Part 1 below

Premises licence number
PL05201
Part 1 – Premises Details
Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or
description
The Northgate
13-14 Northgate Street,
Bury St Edmunds
Suffolk
IP33 1HP
Post
town

Bury St Edmunds

Telephone number at premises (if
any)
Non-domestic rateable value of
premises

Postcode

IP33 1HP

01284 339604
£74,000

Part 2 – Applicant details
Daytime contact
telephone number
E-mail address (optional)
Current postal address if
different from premises
address

Post
town

07950582257
james@chestnutgroup.co.uk
Chestnut Inns Ltd
The Forge
Lower Green
Higham
Suffolk
IP28 6NL

Higham

Postcode

Page 5

IP28 6NL

Part 3 - Variation
Please tick as appropriate
Do you want the proposed variation to have effect as soon as possible?
Yes
If not, from what date do you want the variation to take
effect?

DD

MM

YYYY

Do you want the proposed variation to have effect in relation to the introduction of the
late night levy? (Please see guidance note 1)
No
Please describe briefly the nature of the proposed variation (Please see
guidance note 2)
To amend Annex 3.1 – “The Outside areas are to be vacated by 9pm every
evening” – extend these hours to 10pm
To amend Annex 3.2 – “No tents or Marquees to be erected in the outside area” –
to remove this condition
To add:
A further additional hour into the morning following every Friday, Saturday, Sunday
and Monday for each May Bank Holiday, Spring/Whitsun Bank Holiday and every
August Bank Holiday weekend.
A further additional hour into the morning following every Thursday, Friday,
Saturday, Sunday and Monday for the Easter Bank Holiday weekend.
A further additional hour into the morning every Christmas Eve.
A further additional hour into the morning following every Boxing Day.
From the end of prescribed hours New Year’s Eve to the start of prescribed hours
New Year’s Day.

If your proposed variation would mean that 5,000 or more
people are expected to attend the premises at any one
time, please state the number expected to attend:
Part 4 Operating Schedule
Please complete those parts of the Operating Schedule below which would be
subject to change if this application to vary is successful.
Provision of regulated entertainment (Please see
guidance note 3)
a)

plays (if ticking yes, fill in box A)

b)

films (if ticking yes, fill in box B)

Page 6

Please tick all that
apply

c)

indoor sporting events (if ticking yes, fill in box C)

d)

boxing or wrestling entertainment (if ticking yes, fill in box D)

e)

live music (if ticking yes, fill in box E)

f)

recorded music (if ticking yes, fill in box F)

g)

performances of dance (if ticking yes, fill in box G)

h)

anything of a similar description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g)
(if ticking yes, fill in box H)

Provision of late night refreshment (if ticking yes, fill in box I)
Supply of alcohol (if ticking yes, fill in box J)
In all cases complete boxes K, L and M

Page 7

X

A
Plays
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 8)
Day
Mon

Start

Will the performance of a play take place
indoors or outdoors or both – please tick
(please read guidance note 4)

Indoors
Outdoors
Both

Finish

Please give further details here (please read guidance note
5)

Tue

Wed

State any seasonal variations for performing plays (please
read guidance note 6)

Thur

Fri

Sat

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the
premises for the performance of plays at different times to
those listed in the column on the left, please list (please
read guidance note 7)

Sun

Page 8

B
Films
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 8)
Day
Mon

Start

Will the exhibition of films take place
indoors or outdoors or both – please tick
(please read guidance note 4)

Indoors
Outdoors
Both

Finish

Please give further details here (please read guidance note
5)

Tue

Wed

State any seasonal variations for the exhibition of films
(please read guidance note 6)

Thur

Fri

Sat

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the
premises for the exhibition of films at different times to
those listed in the column on the left, please list (please
read guidance note 7)

Sun

Page 9

C
Indoor sporting
events
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 8)
Day

Start

Please give further details (please read guidance note 5)

Finish

Mon

Tue

State any seasonal variations for indoor sporting events
(please read guidance note 6)

Wed

Thur

Fri

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the
premises for indoor sporting events at different times to
those listed in the column on the left, please list (please
read guidance note 7)

Sat

Sun

Page 10

D
Boxing or wrestling
entertainments
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 8)
Day
Mon

Start

Will the boxing or wrestling entertainment
take place indoors or outdoors or both –
please tick (please read guidance note 4)

Indoors
Outdoors
Both

Finish

Please give further details here (please read guidance note
5)

Tue

Wed

State any seasonal variations for boxing or wrestling
entertainment (please read guidance note 6)

Thur

Fri

Sat

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the
premises for boxing or wrestling entertainment at different
times to those listed in the column on the left, please list
(please read guidance note 7)

Sun

Page 11

E
Live music
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 8)
Day
Mon

Start

Will the performance of live music take
place indoors or outdoors or both –
please tick (please read guidance note 4)

Indoors
Outdoors
Both

Finish

Please give further details here (please read guidance note
5)

Tue

Wed

State any seasonal variations for the performance of live
music (please read guidance note 6)

Thur

Fri

Sat

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the
premises for the performance of live music at different
times to those listed in the column on the left, please list
(please read guidance note 7)

Sun

Page 12

F
Recorded music
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 8)
Day
Mon

Start

Will the playing of recorded music take
place indoors or outdoors or both –
please tick (please read guidance note 4)

Indoors
Outdoors
Both

Finish

Please give further details here (please read guidance note
5)

Tue

Wed

State any seasonal variations for the playing of recorded
music (please read guidance note 6)

Thur

Fri

Sat

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the
premises for the playing of recorded music at different
times to those listed in the column on the left, please list
(please read guidance note 7)

Sun

Page 13

G
Performances of
dance
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 8)
Day
Mon

Start

Will the performance of dance take
place indoors or outdoors or both –
please tick (please read guidance note
4)

Indoors
Outdoors
Both

Finish

Please give further details here (please read guidance
note 5)

Tue

Wed

State any seasonal variations for the performance of
dance (please read guidance note 6)

Thur

Fri

Sat

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the
premises for the performance of dance at different
times to those listed in the column on the left, please
list (please read guidance note 7)

Sun

Page 14

H
Anything of a
similar description
to that falling
within (e), (f) or (g)
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 8)

Please give a description of the type of entertainment you
will be providing

Day

Will this entertainment take place
indoors or outdoors or both – please
tick (please read guidance note 4)

Mon

Start

Finish

Indoors
Outdoors
Both

Tue

Please give further details here (please read guidance
note 5)

Wed

Thur

State any seasonal variations for entertainment of a
similar description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g)
(please read guidance note 6)

Fri

Sat

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the
premises for the entertainment of a similar description
to that falling within (e), (f) or (g) at different times to
those listed in the column on the left, please list
(please read guidance note 7)

Sun

Page 15

I
Late night
refreshment
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 8)
Day
Mon

Start

Will the provision of late night
refreshment take place indoors or
outdoors or both – please tick (please
read guidance note 4)

Indoors
Outdoors
Both

Finish

Please give further details here (please read guidance
note 5)

Tue

Wed

State any seasonal variations for the provision of late
night refreshment (please read guidance note 6)

Thur

Fri

Sat

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the
premises for the provision of late night refreshment at
different times, to those listed in the column on the
left, please list (please read guidance note 7)

Sun

Page 16

J
Supply of alcohol
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 8)
Day

Start

Finish

Mon

11:00

23:59

Tue

11:00

23:59

Wed

11:00

23:59

Thur

11:00

23:59

Fri

11:00

01:00

Sat

11:00

01:00

Sun

11:00

23:59

Will the supply of alcohol be for
consumption – please tick (please
read guidance note 9)

On the
premises
Off the
premises
Both

x

State any seasonal variations for the supply of alcohol
(please read guidance note 6)

Non-standard timings. Where you intend to use the
premises for the supply of alcohol at different times to
those listed in the column on the left, please list
(please read guidance note 7)
As existing:
A further additional hour into the morning following every
Friday, Saturday, Sunday and Monday for each May Bank
Holiday, Spring/Whitsun Bank Holiday and every August
Bank Holiday weekend.
A further additional hour into the morning following every
Thursday, Friday, Saturday, Sunday and Monday for the
Easter Bank Holiday weekend.
A further additional hour into the morning every Christmas
Eve.
A further additional hour into the morning following every
Boxing Day.
From the end of prescribed hours New Year’s Eve to the
start of prescribed hours New Year’s Day.

K
Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, other
entertainment or matters ancillary to the use of the premises that may give
rise to concern in respect of children (please read guidance note 10).

Page 17

L
Hours premises
are open to the
public
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 8)
Day

Start

Finish

Mon

7:00

01:00

Tue

7:00

01:00

Wed

7:00

01:00

Thur

7:00

01:00

Fri

7:00

02:00

Sat

7:00

02:00

Sun

7:00

01:00

State any seasonal variations (please read guidance
note 6)

Non standard timings. Where you intend the premises
to be open to the public at different times from those
listed in the column on the left, please list (please read
guidance note 7)
As existing:
A further additional hour into the morning following every
Friday, Saturday, Sunday and Monday for each May Bank
Holiday, Spring/Whitsun Bank Holiday and every August
Bank Holiday weekend.
A further additional hour into the morning following every
Thursday, Friday, Saturday, Sunday and Monday for the
Easter Bank Holiday weekend.
A further additional hour into the morning every Christmas
Eve.
A further additional hour into the morning following every
Boxing Day.
From the end of prescribed hours New Year’s Eve to the
start of prescribed hours New Year’s Day.

Page 18

Please identify those conditions currently imposed on the licence which you
believe could be removed as a consequence of the proposed variation you are
seeking.
Food not being served on the terrace beyond 9pm on any day
Outside areas are to be vacated by 9pm every evening
We would just like to extend this for a further hour to allow people to finish meals
still at a reasonable time.
No Tents or Marquees to be erected in the outside area
With current trading conditions, we would like the option to have a marquee/cover
outside to put diners in due to the severe space restrictions inside with COVID
social distancing.

Please tick as appropriate
I have enclosed the premises licence

X

I have enclosed the relevant part of the premises licence
If you have not ticked one of these boxes, please fill in reasons for not including the
licence or part of it below
Reasons why I have not enclosed the premises licence or relevant part of
premises licence.

Page 19

M Describe any additional steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing
objectives as a result of the proposed variation:
a) General – all four licensing objectives (b, c, d and e) (please read guidance
note 11)
Having considered the licensing policy document produced by the Council, we
believe that the systems and procedures in place at the premises are designed to
promote the four licensing objectives.

b) The prevention of crime and disorder
A video/CCTV system displaying the correct time and date of the recording shall be
in operation with sufficient cameras to monitor all internal and external areas where
licensable activities take place and be capable of producing immediate copies on
site either recorded digitally on to CD/DVD or other equivalent medium. A person
competent in producing visual recordings to the police or an authorised officer on
demand to be present on the premises at all times.
All recording to be retained and stored in a suitable and secure manner for a
minimum of 28 days and be made available, subject to compliance with Data
Protection legislation, to the police for inspection on request.
CCTV monitoring and recording equipment (including any mobile units in use at the
premises) to be maintained at all times in a working condition.
All staff/individuals engaged or to be engaged in the sale of alcohol on the premises
shall receive the following training in age restricted sales with training records
available for inspection by the police or other authorised officer on request.
 induction training which must be completed and documented prior to the sale
of alcohol by the staff member.
 refresher/reinforcement training at intervals of no more than 6 months.
The designated premises supervisor shall authorise in writing the names of the staff
members/individuals suitably trained to be responsible for the sale of alcohol at the
premises in his/her absence.
A zero tolerance drug policy to be implemented at the premises and appropriate
drug awareness staff training shall take place with training records maintained and
made available on request to the Police or an Authorised Officer.
Where glass bottles are used, they will be retained or disposed or on the
premises.

c) Public safety

Page 20

We will ensure that all fire equipment is serviced regularly, and that fire exits are
well maintained and never locked.
We will make sure that escape routes and exists, including external exists, are
maintained to ensure that they are not obstructed, are in good working order and
free of trip hazards.
Make sure that all fire doors are maintained and effectively self closing and not
held open other than by approved devices.
We will ensure that hangings, curtains and temporary decorations are maintained
in a flame retardant condition and that any upholstered seating meets the
smouldering ignition standard.
We will ensure that access for emergency vehicles is kept clear and free from
obstruction.
We will make sure that adequate arrangements exist to enable disabled persons
to evacuate the premises safely in the event of an emergency and that the staff
are made aware of these arrangements.
We will make sure that adequate and appropriate supplies of first aid equipment
and materials are available on the premises and that at least one member of staff
is a trained first aider.
We will make sure that we have valid public liability insurance in force.
d) The prevention of public nuisance
When events involving regulated entertainment are to occur the event details and a
contact number to be advertised at least seven days before the event either outside
the venue and/or on the website, where concerns and suggestions can be raised
before, during or after the proposed event. A written record of such calls and actions
taken to be maintained.
Noise or vibration from licensable activities must not emanate from the premises so
as to cause a nuisance at nearby properties.
Aural monitoring of noise levels to take place outside the premises at least once
during events involving regulated entertainment and appropriate measures to be
taken to ensure compliance with condition 10 above. A written record of these
monitoring inspections to be maintained to include the name of the person who
conducted the monitoring, the date and time of the monitoring and the outcome of
the monitoring.
Except for ingress to and egress from the premises, all doors and windows to remain
closed from 22:00 hours during events involving regulated entertainment.
The placing of refuse and empty bottles into outside receptacles shall not take place
during the night-time hours between 21:00 and 07:00 to minimise disturbance to
nearby properties.

Page 21

Clear and legible notices to be prominently displayed at all premises exits to request
patrons to respect the needs of local residents and to leave the premises and
surrounding area quietly.
Clear and legible notices to be prominently displayed in the external smoking area
to request patrons to respect the needs of local residents and to use the smoking
facility in a quiet and responsible manner.

e) The protection of children from harm
The premises licence holder shall ensure that an age verification policy will apply to
the premises whereby all bar staff will be trained to ask any customer attempting to
purchase alcohol, who appears to be under the age of 25 years (or older if the
licence holder so elects) to produce, before being sold alcohol, identification being
a passport or photocard driving licence bearing a holographic mark or other form of
identification that complies with any mandatory condition that may apply to this
licence.
Where the sale of alcohol takes place at events in an area of the premises other
than the main bar, no persons under 18 years of age to be permitted entry to the
area where the event is taking place unless accompanied by a responsible adult.
An incident book to record the refusal of alcohol sales and/or ejections from the
premises to be maintained on the premises and this book to be made available on
request to the police or an authorised officer.
There will be no gaming on the premises.

Checklist:
Please tick to indicate agreement
I have made or enclosed payment of the fee; or
I have not made or enclosed payment of the fee because this application
has been made in relation to the introduction of the late night levy.

X
X

I have sent copies of this application and the plan to responsible
authorities and others where applicable.

X

I understand that I must now advertise my application.

X

I have enclosed the premises licence or relevant part of it or explanation.

X

I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my
application will be rejected.

X

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO
MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS
APPLICATION. THOSE WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON
SUMMARY CONVICTION TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.
Part 5 – Signatures (please read guidance note 12)

Page 22

Signature of applicant (the current premises licence holder) or applicant’s
solicitor or other duly authorised agent (please read guidance note 13). If
signing on behalf of the applicant, please state in what capacity.
Signature
Date
Capacity

Director of Chestnut Inns Ltd

Where the premises licence is jointly held, signature of 2nd applicant (the
current premises licence holder) or 2nd applicant’s solicitor or other
authorised agent (please read guidance note 14). If signing on behalf of the
applicant, please state in what capacity.
Signature
Date
Capacity
Contact name (where not previously given) and address for correspondence
associated with this application (please read guidance note 15)
James Daley
Chestnut Inns Ltd
The Forge
Lower Green
Higham
Suffolk
IP28 6NL
Post
Higham
Post
IP28 6NL
town
code
Telephone number (if
07950582257
any)
If you would prefer us to correspond with you by e-mail, your e-mail address
(optional)
james@chestnutgroup.co.uk
Notes for Guidance
This application cannot be used to vary the licence so as to extend the period
for which the licence has effect or to vary substantially the premises to which it
relates. If you wish to make that type of change to the premises licence, you
should make a new premises licence application under section 17 of the
Licensing Act 2003.

Page 23

1. You do not have to pay a fee if the only purpose of the variation for which you
are applying is to avoid becoming liable for the late night levy
2. Describe the premises. For example, the type of premises, its general
situation and layout and any other information which could be relevant to the
licensing objectives. Where your application includes off-supplies of alcohol
and you intend to provide a place of consumption of these off-supplies of
alcohol, you must include a description of where the place will be and its
proximity to the premises.
3. In terms of specific regulated entertainments please note that:
 Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and
23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
 Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in
community premises between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day provided
that the audience does not exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets
consent to the screening from a person who is responsible for the
premises; and (b) ensures that each such screening abides by age
classification ratings.
 Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for performances
between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience
does not exceed 1000.
 Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment: no licence is required for a
contest, exhibition or display of Greco-Roman wrestling, or freestyle
wrestling between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the
audience does not exceed 1000. Combined fighting sports – defined
as a contest, exhibition or display which combines boxing or wrestling
with one or more martial arts – are licensable as a boxing or wrestling
entertainment rather than an indoor sporting event.
 Live music: no licence permission is required for:
o a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and
23.00 on any day, on any premises.
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and
23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell alcohol for
consumption on those premises, provided that the audience
does not exceed 500.
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and
23.00 on any day, in a workplace that is not licensed to sell
alcohol on those premises, provided that the audience does
not exceed 500.
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and
23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall, community hall,
or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a
premises licence to sell alcohol, provided that (a) the audience
does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for
the performance from a person who is responsible for the
premises.
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and
23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises of (i) a local
authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the
audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets
consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i)
the local authority concerned, or (ii) the school or (iii) the health
care provider for the hospital.
 Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for:

Page 24

any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on
any day on premises authorised to sell alcohol for consumption
on those premises, provided that the audience does not
exceed 500.
o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on
any day, in a church hall, village hall, community hall, or other
similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises
licence to sell alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not
exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the
performance from a person who is responsible for the
premises.
o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on
any day, at the non-residential premises of (i) a local authority,
or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience
does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for
the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local
authority concerned, or (ii) the school proprietor or (iii) the
health care provider for the hospital.
o



Dance: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and
23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
However, a performance which amounts to adult entertainment
remains licensable.
 Cross activity exemptions: no licence is required between 08.00 and
23.00 on any day, with no limit on audience size for:
o any entertainment taking place on the premises of the local
authority where the entertainment is provided by or on behalf
of the local authority;
o any entertainment taking place on the hospital premises of the
health care provider where the entertainment is provided by or
on behalf of the health care provider;
o any entertainment taking place on the premises of the school
where the entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the
school proprietor; and
o any entertainment (excluding films and a boxing or wrestling
entertainment) taking place at a travelling circus, provided that
(a) it takes place within a moveable structure that
accommodates the audience, and (b) that the travelling circus
has not been located on the same site for more than 28
consecutive days.
4. Where taking place in a building or other structure please tick as appropriate
(indoors may include a tent).
5. For example state type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and
give relevant further details, for example (but not exclusively) whether or not
music will be amplified or unamplified.
6. For example (but not exclusively), where the activity will occur on additional
days during the summer months.
7. For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer
on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.
8. Please give timings in 24 hour clock (e.g. 16.00) and only give details for the
days of the week when you intend the premises to be used for the activity.
9. If you wish people to be able to consume alcohol on the premises, please tick
‘on the premises’. If you wish people to be able to purchase alcohol to

Page 25

consume away from the premises, please tick ‘off the premises’. If you wish
people to be able to do both, please tick ‘both’.
10. Please give information about anything intended to occur at the premises or
ancillary to the use of the premises which may give rise to concern in respect
of children regardless of whether you intend children to have access to the
premises, for example (but not exclusively) nudity or semi-nudity, films for
restricted age groups or the presence of gaming machines.
11. Please list here steps you will take to promote all four licensing objectives
together.
12. The application form must be signed.
13. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf
provided that they have actual authority to do so.
14. Where there is more than one applicant, each of the applicants or their
respective agents must sign the application form.
15. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this
application.

Page 26

APPENDIX 2

PL05201

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence
ANNEX 4 - PLAN OF PREMISES

Printed on 15 Sep 2020 at 12:45
www.lalpac.com

Page 27

PL05201/19382
Page 1 of 1

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX 3
1.
[Representation of 13/10/2020 -18:08 From Susan & James Cockram

Ref application to vary hours of opening on the terrace.
We feel we must take this opportunity to object to this application. We live in Schoolhall Lane and hear
the noise from the Terrace quite frequently. It is very disrupting in this quiet and peaceful area of Bury St
Edmunds.
We understand and appreciate that with COVID regulations it is very difficult for restaurants to supply
food after 9.30 as the area has to be cleared by 10.00pm. Will this happen if they get permission to
remain open until 11.00pm. We would accept, with reluctance 10.00pm clearing from the Terrace. We
feel the noise would increase as people would have two further hours to drink and then could become
rowdy.
There is no indication of the size of the Marquee and would be grateful for clarification on this.
I am assuming if music is required special licence has to be applied for.
2.
[Representation of 13/10/2020-23:42 From Robert Todd

I have only just been made aware of this application by virtue of the Public Notice (attached) posted
outside the Premises.
I have tried to contact you by telephone to discuss the notice but could only leave a message and contact
details with the enquiry desk.
I cannot see from the notice what duration the variation has been applied for.
If it is a temporary variation to cover Covid-19 disruption and protect the Premises’s business in these
troubled times then I would have no objection.
However, if this is an application for a permanent variation then I must object on the grounds of Public
Nuisance.
We are currently aware of noise from the terrace and my family is able to just about manage that noise
up until 9pm but we certainly don’t want to hear it while we're in bed and I assume that the extended
drinking time will mean that at 11pm it will be louder than at 9pm because the customers would have
been able to drink for an additional two hours.
I was under the impression that, following the rejection of the original planning application following
comment from Public Health & Housing and others, it was a condition of the revised planning consent
DC/15/1936/FUL, that the 9pm closing time on the terrace (as specified in the applicant’s Operational
Management Plan) was imposed to mitigate the nuisance to the surrounding residential properties who
are, and more importantly have bedrooms, within earshot of the terrace. Please advise how the licence
can be varied within the conditions of the planning application.
I stress that If it is a temporary variation solely to cover disruption during the period of restrictions under
government Covid-19 policy and will protect the Premises’s business in these troubled times then I would
have no objection.
Please confirm receipt of this objection to the application and advise what further action you plan for the
application.

Page 29

Hi,

3. Representation of 14/10/2020 – 11:03 From Peggy Moran West Suffolk Council Planning

It is noted that on the Licensing Application the opening hours exceed that permitted
by the current planning permission.
The property is in a highly populated residential area, a planning application would
need to be submitted to vary the opening hours and be approved before these
changes came into force. Please see attached decision notices DC/15/1936/FUL,
DCON(A)/15/1936 and operational management plan relating to these
conditions. Also, please advise the applicant that permission may be needed for the
proposed siting of the tent/marquee.
Irrespective of any licensing provisions, a breach of planning control will result if the
conditions of the planning permission are not complied with.
We recommend that advice is sought from the planning department, before
commencement of these changes, to see if a planning consent is required for the
proposals. Details of Planning Pre-application advice service can be found via
https://www.westsuffolk.gov.uk/planning/planning_applications/preapplicationadvice
.cfm
Kind regards
4.
Representation of 15/10/2020 – 10:11 From Judi Apichella

To whom it may concern. I object on the ground of public nuisance from noise and lightning.
I own - Northgate Street, the immediate neighbour of The Northgate. The original planning for The
Northgate allowed the use of the terrace until 9pm so my family and neighbours wouldn’t have to be
disturbed after that point. This has been manageable so far.
During this Covid-19 pandemic I realise it’s very difficult for businesses to survive so I suggest a time limit
of 10 months and cut off to 10pm.
I would be glad to talk further.
5.
Representation of 15/10/2020 – 14:40 From Stephen Oliver

I wish to register my objection to the above proposal. Eating on the terrace, till later, with or
without a marquee will necessarily create noise easily heard by a number of properties in the
vicinity. The application to operate for a further hour in the evening will create a public nuisance
from the sound of diners eating and drinking, and, at the end of the evening, from the shutting of
car doors and noisy alcohol fuelled farewells. The surrounding area is primarily residential and
will turn a quiet area of gardens in the central conservation area into one that that is polluted by

Page 30

noise. Property owners have a right to expect the Council to protect them from this kind of
development.

Page 31

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX 4

Page 33

Page 34

Page 35

Page 36

Page 37

Page 38

Page 39

This page is intentionally left blank

